

Woman's Auxiliary

DIOCESE OF NEWARK



REPORTS

1919-1921

Report of the
WOMAN'S AUXILIARY
of the
DIOCESE OF NEWARK
1919-1921



JANUARY—1922

Prayers

THE WOMAN'S AUXILIARY PRAYER

Almighty God, Our Heavenly Father, bless, we pray Thee, our work for Thee, and make us so thankful for the precious gift to us of Thy Beloved Son, that we may pray fervently, labor diligently, and give liberally to make Him known to all nations as their God and Saviour. We ask this for His dear sake. Amen.

A PRAYER FOR THE UNITED THANK OFFERING

O Lord, our Heavenly Father, we pray Thee to send forth more laborers into Thy harvest, and to grant them Thy special grace for every need. Guard and guide the workers in the field, and draw us into closer fellowship with them. Dispose the hearts of all women everywhere to give gladly as Thou hast prospered them. Accept, from thankful hearts, our United Offering of prayer and gifts and joyful service; and bless it to the coming of Thy Kingdom, through Jesus Christ our Lord. Amen.

Dear Friends of the Woman's Auxiliary:

In looking over this first year in which we have worked together, it seems to me there are three things that denote progress.

The first is a more complete district and diocesan organization; the second a more general and a more active interest in the missionary work of the Church; the third the establishment of the Book of Remembrance in connection with the Emery Fund.

Immediately after the election in October, 1920, a committee was appointed to draft a new constitution and by-laws. The suggestions made by this committee lead to a consideration of the development of the districts along diocesan lines which would call for many more women willing to hold office. These have been found and are proving to be valuable aids to the Executive Committee.

The Supply Department with its central budget and cutting and distributing department makes it possible for the smallest guild to do some boxwork, and the Second Vice-President, Mrs. Colton, found last Winter that at times the demand taxed her resources to the utmost.

The Book of Remembrance met with an immediate response. Names known to us all have been written on its pages, together with those of women equally devoted but whose service had been confined to a smaller field. The joy of thus honoring them has been great and to it has been added the knowledge that in this act of remembrance we were perpetuating their work by adding to the Jubilee Fund.

Our work for the immediate future is to prepare for the Triennial Convention to be held in Portland, Oregon, beginning September 6th. We must inform ourselves on the subjects which will be considered. We must pray earnestly that the Holy Spirit will guide every council, and we must let our interest and our prayers express themselves in our gifts until no good work will suffer for lack of means.

Our first act at the Triennial is the presentation of the United Thank Offering and our aim is to have it a real expression of thanks made by thousands of church women for countless blessings received during the past three years.

Since our annual meeting has occurred, on January 10th, the death of our long time friend and leader, Miss Julia C. Emery. In her life she was our inspiration and may her last words spoken to us at the fiftieth anniversary meeting be our motto for all the future.

"The one aim, the one object in which every smaller and lesser purpose and aim and object is hidden away, is, that each day we live, each work we do, each word we say, may give our Lord and Savior, the Master of us all, joy."

Very sincerely your friend,

FRANCES C. BOYNTON.

OFFICERS FOR 1922

Honorary Presidents

MRS. EDWIN S. LINES
48 Berkeley Avenue, Newark

MRS. J. HULL BROWNING
Tenafly, or 31 West 53d Street, New York

MRS. WILSON R. STEARLY
60 Berkeley Avenue, Newark

President

MRS. CHARLES H. BOYNTON
3 Chelsea Square, New York (after May 1)

Vice Presidents

(Educational Department)
MRS. STEPHEN S. JOHNSON
377 Charlton Avenue, South Orange

(Supply Department)

MRS. CHESTER LEE COLTON
49 Milford Avenue, Newark

(Social Service Department)

MRS. HERBERT BARRY
Llewellyn Park, West Orange

Recording Secretary

MRS. JOHN HAWES
64 Overlook Avenue, Ridgewood

Corresponding Secretary

MISS IDA B. DEMAREST
398 Main Street, Hackensack
(Custodian of Emery Fund)

Treasurer

MRS. WILLIAM S. RODIE
255 Scotland Road, South Orange

Auditor

MRS. FREDERICK H. BROWN
Dana Place, Englewood

Custodian of United Thank Offering (of the Women of the Church)

MRS. J. RICHMOND PITMAN
611 Berkeley Avenue, Orange

Bishop's Missionary Fund

MRS. WM. READ HOWE
Llewellyn Park, West Orange

Comfort Club

MRS. CHARLES F. CLARK
98 Weequahic Avenue, Newark

District Directors and Committees

Hackensack

MRS. F. B. WHITMORE
103 Elliott Place, Rutherford

Jersey City

MRS. S. A. TRENCH
190 Belmont Avenue, Jersey City

Montclair

MRS. REGINALD H. WILLIAMS
17 Montclair Avenue, Montclair

Morristown

MRS. HENRY K. MORGAN
80 Miller Road, Morristown

Newton

MISS MARY MORFORD
34 Linwood Avenue, Newton

Newark

MRS. CHARLES H. BALDWIN
43 South Street, Newark

Orange

MRS. T. N. ROSS
52 Lenox Avenue, East Orange

Paterson

MRS. CHARLES E. HUTCHISON
14 Prospect Terrace, East Orange

Publicity

Chairman, MRS. CHARLES H. VAN NOSTRAND
434 Berkeley Avenue, Orange

Program

Chairman, MRS. CHARLES E. HUTCHISON
14 Prospect Terrace, East Orange

Finance

Chairman, MRS. FRANKLIN VAN WINKLE
297 Broadway, Paterson

INDEX OF PARISHES BY DISTRICTS

DISTRICT OF HACKENSACK (26)

District Director—MRS. F. B. WHITMORE, 103 Elliott Place, Rutherford

CITY	PARISH	CITY	PARISH
Bergenfields	All Saints	Leonia	All Saints
Bogota	Ascension	Montvale	St. Paul
Cedar Park	Epiphany	Norwood	Holy Communion
Coytesville	St. Stephens	Nordhoff	St. John
East Rutherford	Grace	North Arlington	St. Paul
Edgewater	Mediator	Oradell	Annunciation
Englewood	St. Paul	Ridgefield	St. James
Fairview	Nativity	Ridgefield Park	St. Mark
Fort Lee	Good Shepherd	Rochelle Park	St. Peter
Grantwood	Trinity	Rutherford	Grace
Grandview	Grace	Tenafly	Atonement
Hackensack	Christ	West Englewood	Christ
Hillsdale	Trinity	Westwood	Grace
Hasbrouck Heights	St. John	Woodridge	St. Paul

DISTRICT OF JERSEY CITY (19)

District Director—MRS. S. A. TRENCH, 190 Belmont Ave., Jersey City

CITY	PARISH	CITY	PARISH
Bayonne	Calvary	Jersey City	St. Mary
Bayonne	St. John	Jersey City	St. Johns
Bayonne	Trinity	Jersey City	St. Paul
Hoboken	Holy Innocents	Jersey City	Grace (Van Vorst)
Hoboken	Trinity	Jersey City	Grace (Greenville)
Hoboken	St. Paul	Jersey City	Incarnation
Jersey City	Ascension	Town of Union	Grace
Jersey City	Holy Cross	West Hoboken	St. John
Jersey City	St. Agnes	Wood Cliff	Transfiguration
Jersey City	St. Mark		

DISTRICT OF MONTCLAIR (11)

District Director—

MRS. REGINALD WILLIAMS, 17 Montclair Avenue, Montclair

CITY	PARISH	CITY	PARISH
Bloomfield	Ascension	Montclair	Trinity
Cedar Grove	St. David	Montclair	St. Lukes
Essex Fells	St. Peter	Montclair	St. John
Glen Ridge	Christ Church	Towako	Transfiguration
Lincoln Park	St. Andrew	Upper Montclair	St. James
Little Falls	St. Agnes		

DISTRICT OF MORRISTOWN (10)

District Director—

MRS. HENRY K. MORGAN, 80 Miller Road, Morristown

CITY	PARISH	CITY	PARISH
Boonton	St. John	Millington	All Saints
Chatham	St. Pauls	Morristown	St. Peters
Dover	St. John	Morristown	Church of the Redeemer
Madison	Grace	Mount Arlington	St. Peters
Mendham	St. Marks	Summit	Calvary

DISTRICT OF NEWARK (19)

District Director—MRS. CHARLES H. BALDWIN, 43 South Street, Newark

CITY	PARISH	CITY	PARISH
Arlington	Trinity	Newark	St. John
Belleville	Christ	Newark	Mary Magdalene
Harrison	Christ	Newark	St. Paul
Irvington	Trinity	Newark	St. Philip
Nutley	Grace	Newark	St. Stephen
Newark	Christ	Newark	Trinity
Newark	House of Prayer	Newark	St. Thomas
Newark	St. Albans	Newark	Grace
Newark	St. Andrew	Newark	St. Marys
Newark	St. Barnabas	Newark (Vailsburg)	St. Georges
Newark	St. James	Newark	St. Marks

DISTRICT OF NEWTON (10)

District Director—MISS MARY MORFORD, 34 Linden Street, Newton

CITY	PARISH	CITY	PARISH
Belvidere	Zion	Newton	Christ
Delaware	St. James	Philipsburg	St. Lukes
Hope	St. Lukes	Stanhope	Christ Mission
Hackettstown	St. James	Vernon	St. Thomas
Hamburg	Good Shepherd	Washington	St. Peters

DISTRICT OF ORANGE (16)

District Director—MRS. T. N. ROSS, 52 Lenox Avenue, East Orange

East Orange	Christ	Orange	Epiphany
East Orange	St. Agnes	Orange	Grace
East Orange	Incarnation	Short Hills	Christ
East Orange	St. Paul	South Orange	Holy Communion
Livingston	St. Peter	South Orange	St. Andrew
Maplewood	St. George	West Orange	Holy Innocents
Millburn	St. Stephens	West Orange	St. Marks
Orange	All Saints	West Orange	Holy Trinity

DISTRICT OF PATERSON (21)

District Director—

MRS. CHARLES E. HUTCHISON, 14 Prospect Terrace, East Orange

Allendale	Epiphany	Paterson	St. Lukes
Butler	St. Paul	Paterson	St. Marks
Clifton	St. Peter	Paterson	St. Pauls
Delawana	St. Stephens	Paterson	St. Aiden
Glenrock	All Saints	Passaic	St. Johns
Garfield	Holy Innocents	Passaic	St. Georges
Hawthorne	St. Clement	Pompton Lakes	Christ
Haledon	St. Mary	Ridgewood	Christ
Ho-Ho Kus	St. Bartholomew	Ramsay	St. John
Little Falls	St. Agnes	Totowa	Trinity
Paterson	Holy Communion	Wortendyke	Christ

INDEX DISTRICT OFFICERS

1. HACKENSACK

Mrs. F. B. Whitmore.....103 Elliott Place, Rutherford, Director
Mrs. George Kalle.....Secretary
Miss Anne Odiorne.....Treasurer
Miss Edith Kimball.....394 Park Ave., Rutherford, Ed. Sec.
Miss Madeleine Welch....302 Union Street, Hackensack, Social Service Sec.
Mrs. F. A. E. Cott.....Supply Secretary

2. JERSEY CITY

Mrs. S. A. Trench..190 Belmont Ave., Jersey City, Director and Supply Sec.
Mrs. George L. Stockett....50 Kensington Ave., Jersey City, Sec. and Treas.
Mrs. Paul Boyer.....14 West 6th Street, Bayonne, Ed. Secretary
Mrs. Livingston L. Lewis..712 Washington St., Hoboken, Social Service Sec.
Mrs. B. F. Kunckeu..328 West St., W. Hoboken, Custodian of W. U. T. O.

3. MORRISTOWN

Mrs. Henry K. Morgan.....80 Miller Road, Morristown, Director
Mrs. H. W. Harmon.....132 Boulevard Summit, Secretary and Treas.
Miss Edith Hayes.....47 Green Village Road, Madison, Educational Sec.
Mrs. J. Trapnell.....18 North Hillside Ave., Chatham, Social Sec.
Mrs. Howard Coghill.....Normandie Park, Morristown, Supply Sec.
Miss M. Van Rensselaer..26 Maple Ave., Morristown, Cust. of W. U. T. O.

4. MONTCLAIR

Mrs. Reginald Williams.....17 Montclair Ave., Montclair, Director
Mrs. C. B. Stroud.....48 Montclair Ave., Caldwell, Secretary and Treas.
Mrs. Henry Leverich.....54 Elm Street, Montclair, Educational Sec.
Mrs. John J. Bridges....163 Montclair Ave., Montclair, Social Service Sec.
Mrs. Arthur C. Williams.....564 Upper Montclair Ave., Upper
.....Montclair, Supply Sec.
Mrs. Alfred Mencrief.....Little Falls, Custodian of W. U. T. O.

5. NEWTON

Miss Mary Morford.....34 Linden Ave., Newton, Director
Secretary and Treasurer
Educational Secretary
Social Service Secretary
Mrs. E. M. Sandys.....Washington, N. J., Supply Secretary

6. NEWARK

Mrs. Charles H. Baldwin.....43 South Street, Newark, Director
Mrs. Robert Bentley.....Recording Sec.
Educational Sec.
Mrs. Burton L. R. Hare....237 Belleville Ave., Newark, Social Service Sec.
Mrs. H. H. Sawyer.....351 Woodside Ave., Newark, Supply Sec.
Mrs. Frank Morefield..35 Columbia Street, Newark, Cust. of W. U. T. O.

7. ORANGE

Mrs. T. N. Ross.....52 Lenox Ave., East Orange, Director
Mrs. J. W. Fisher.....10 North Munn Ave., East Orange, Secretary
Mrs. Russell Brittingham.....412 Tremont Ave., Orange, Educational Sec.
Mrs. Herbert Barry.....Llewellyn Park, West Orange, Social Service Sec.
Mrs. Samuel Southmayd..227 North Walnut St., East Orange, Supply Sec.
Custodian of W U. T. O.

8. PATERSON

Mrs. Charles E. Hutchison....14 Prospect Terrace, East Orange, Director
Mrs. Harry L. Pfeiffer.....42 Cottage Place, Ridgewood, Secretary
Educational Sec.
Social Service Sec.
Mrs. John Moore.....Supply Sec
Mrs. Charles Sparkman....448 Ellison Ave., Paterson, Assistant Supply Sec.
Mrs. S. S. Evans....377—15th Street, Paterson, Custodian of W. U. T. O.

INDEX OF PARISH OFFICERS

PARISH	CITY	PRES. AND TREAS.
Ascension	Bloomfield	Mrs. E. P. Lummis, 215 Montgomery St. Mrs. J. Wilde, 113 Newark Ave.
Ascension	Bogota	
Ascension	Jersey City	Mrs. E. P. Hooper, 555 Palisade Ave.
All Saints	Bergenfields	Mrs. Alvah E. Reed, Ridgewood Mrs. Kingswood, Dumont
All Saints	Glenrock	Mrs. Howard Wood Mrs. Charles Wolf
All Saints	Leonia	Mrs. Theodore Willich, 111 Leonia Ave. Mrs. Newby, 2nd Palisade Park
All Saints	Millington	Mrs. Arthur Hicks Mrs. Wiegand
All Saints	Orange	Mrs. Henry Ayres, 491 Scotland Road Miss Marion S. Puffer, 26 Clarendon Place
Annunciation	Oradell	Mrs. W. W. Desmond, Maple Ave.
Atonement	Tenafly	Mrs. P. L. Raymond, Sisson Terrace Mrs. Alex. Roberts, Tenafly Road
Calvary	Bayonne	Mrs. F. L. Beers, 28 East 38th Street
Calvary	Summit	Mrs. O. F. Lovenburg, 26 Norwood Av. Miss M. A. Wayre, 12 Norwood Av.
Christ	Belleville	Mrs. J. Weitzell, 204 Joralemon Street Mrs. M. Lloyd, 543 Washington Ave.
Christ	Glen Ridge	Mrs. Alfred Hurrell, 60 Lincoln Street Mrs. Charles A. Roberts, 58 Douglas Road
Christ	East Orange	Mrs. Robert Benson 36 Sandford Street Mrs. A. V. Berner, 43 Chelsea Place
Christ	Hackensack	Mrs. A. A. C. Gorden, 254 State Street Miss Susan M. Taplin, Maywood
Christ	Harrison	Mrs. W. J. Tilley, 311 Davis Ave.

PARISH	CITY	PRES. AND TREAS.
Christ	Newark	Mrs. Frank Moorfield, 35 Columbia St.
Christ	Newton	Miss Mary M. Morford, 34 Linwood Av. Miss Margaret Sharp, 83 Main Street
Christ	Ridgewood	Mrs. John Hawes, 64 Overlook Ave. Mrs. J. D. Dunning, 264 Highland Av.
Christ	Pompton Lakes	Mrs. Ralph Truscott
Christ	Short Hills	Mrs. Stewart Hartshorn, Crescent Road Mrs. Spencer
Christ	West Englewood	Mrs. Adam Dysert, 25 Rutland Ave.
Christ	Wortendyke	Mrs. William Bolleman
Epiphany	Allendale	Mrs. H. E. Watson Mrs. William Darken
Epiphany	Cedar Park	Mrs. E. Shulenberger Mrs. May Turnbull
Epiphany	East Orange	Mrs. G. M. Plaskett, 28 Webster Place
Good Shepherd	Hamburg	Miss Martha H. Dennis Mrs. Julia Bloom
Grace	J. C. (Green- ville)	Mrs. Henrietta King, 42 Brinckeroff St.
Grace	J. C. (Van Vorst Park)	
Grace	Madison	Mrs. William O. Rogers, 81 Green Ave. Mrs. W. R. Baker, 43 Crescent Place
Grace	Newark	Mrs. Zach. Belcher, 145 Mt. Pleasant Av. Mrs. Charles F. Clark, 98 Weequahic Avenue
Grace	Nutley	Mrs. Ernest Pulsford, 38 Vreeland Ave. Mrs. F. B. Miller, Edgewood Ave.
Grace	Orange	Mrs. S. Lord, 281 Centre Street Mrs. William Crocker, 107 Park St.
Grace	Rutherford	Mrs. B. Whitmore, 103 Elliott Place Mrs. Elmer Hodgson
Grace	Town of Union	Mrs. C. Lippert, 207 Oak St. Weehawken Mrs. F. Walters, 88 Highwood Ter- race, Weehawken
Holy Cross	Jersey City	Miss Ada Thomas, 140 Arlington Ave.
Holy Com- munion	Paterson	Mrs. John Sutton, 232 Cook Ave.
Holy Com- munion	South Orange	Mrs. W. S. Rodie, 255 Scotland Road Mrs. F. F. Meyer, 460 Scotland Road
Holy Innocents	Garfield	
Holy Innocents	Hoboken	Mrs. E. Brewer, 1216 Park Ave.
Holy Innocents	West Orange	Mrs. T. H. P. Farr, Orange Mountain
House of Prayer	Newark	Mrs. J. A. Williams, 399 Summer Ave.
Mediator	Edgewater	
Nativity	Fairview	
Redeemer	Morristown	

PARISH	CITY	PRES. AND TREAS.
St. Agnes	Little Falls	Mrs. Robert Cross, Jr. 2nd Avenue Mrs. William A. Lang
St. Agnes	East Orange	Mrs. Oliver C. Hall, 182 So. Arlington Avenue Mrs. Walter Jackson, 141 So. Grove Street
St. Aiden Mission	Paterson	Mrs. Anna T. Johnson, 267 Grovenor St. Miss Minerva Wright
St. Alban	Newark	
St. Andrew	Newark	Mrs. Marie J. Quinlan, 51 Ingraham Pl. Mrs. A. C. Babbitt
St. Andrew	So. Orange	Mrs. Percy H. Bradshaw, 402 Tremont Place, Orange Mrs. C. Harry Loutrel, 270 Irving Avenue
St. Andrew	Montclair	Mrs. T. H. Glover Mrs. Charles Hoagland
St. Barnabas	Newark	Mrs. F. D. Rickey, 48 North 13th St. Mrs. H. Heron
St. Bartholomew.	Hohokus	Mrs. S. W. Richards
St. Clement	Hawthorne	Mrs. Prescott Mrs. Pickaart
St. David	Cedar Grove	
St. George	Maplewood	Mrs. James Penoyer, Prospect Ave. Wyoming Mrs. A. H. Baldwin, 59 Mountain Av., So. Orange
St. George	Passaic	Mrs. Walter Tower Mrs. Thomas Berridge, 113 Lincoln Street
St. James.....	Delaware	Miss S. E. Albertson
St. James	Upper Montclair.	Mrs. L. W. Menocal, 219 Lorraine Ave. Mrs. J. A. Neville, 45 Northview Ave.
St. James	Newark	Mrs. Percy Olton, 119 Broad Street Mrs. William H. Osborne 213 Highland Avenue
St. James	Ridgefield.....	Miss Elizabeth Magar
St. John	Bayonne	Mrs. Alfred Lewis, 35 East 40th Street Mrs. Frank Eley, Sr., 48 East 37th St.
St. John	Boonton	Mrs. W. R. Cole, 422 Washington Street Mrs. E. B. Rosevear, 412 Morris Ave.
St. John	Dover	Mrs. C. H. Benedict, 7 Baker Ave.
St. John The Divine.....	Hasbrouck Hts....	Mrs. Isaac Beales, 356 Harrison Ave. Mrs. Albert Nock
St. John	Jersey City	Mrs. F. M. Dudley, 23 Van Reipen Av. Mrs. William Voorhees, 608 Pavonia Avenue
St. John	Montclair	Mrs. R. H. Williams, 17 Montclair Ave. Mrs. A. E. Forstoll, 156 Midland Ave.
St. John.....	Newark	Mrs. Mary Heyes, 15 Ruby Place
St. John.....	Nordhoff	Mrs. Frank Enos, Grand Ave., Englewood
St. John.....	Ramsey	Mrs. Suzanne Partridge Mrs. De Baum, Highland Ave.

PARISH	CITY	PRES. AND TREAS.
St. John	West Hoboken ..	Mrs. W. E. Marshall, 620 High Street Mrs. L. Nicholas, 225 Angelique St.
St. John	Jersey City.....	Mrs. C. E. Nichols, 215 Harrison Ave. Mrs. W. Glimm, 155 Clinton Avenue
St. Luke	Phillipsburg	Mrs. Charles Housel, 23 Brainard St. Mrs. Thomas Curnow
St. Luke	Montclair	Mrs. A. H. Lamborne, 248 Upper Mt. Avenue
St. Mark	Jersey City	Mrs. Edward Nervey
St. Mark	Newark	Mrs. H. H. Sawyer, 351 Woodside Ave. Mrs. C. Stanley, 641 Ridge Street
St. Mark	Ridgefield Park...	Mrs G. W. White, 84 Paulison Ave.
St. Mark	West Orange	Mrs. Oscar B. Newhouse, 2817 Mount- ain Ave. Mrs. A. Gall, 70 Ridge St., Orange
St. Mark	Mendham	Mrs. Seth C. Hawley, East Main St. Mrs. Mary Rapelye, Bernardsville
St. Mary	Haledon	Mrs. William Watts, 447 Belmont Ave.
St. Mary	Jersey City	Mrs. E. M. Springer, 4 Concord Street Mrs. J. Smith
Mary Magdalene.	Newark	Mrs. Rose Robinson, 217 Pomona Ave.
St. Pauls	Butler	
St. Pauls	Englewood	Mrs. F. H. Brown, Dana Place Miss Frances Clark
St. Pauls	Englewood	Mrs. B. H. Brinton, Lydecker Street Miss Edith Hooven, Franklin Street
St. Pauls	Hoboken	Mrs. J. H. Bryan, 213—11th Street
St. Pauls	Jersey City	Miss Rosaline Tower, 129 Bentley Ave. Mrs. Porter
St. Paul	Montvale	Mrs. C. R. Moulton
St. Paul	Newark	Miss Selina Morgan, 30 Elm Street
St. Paul	North Arlington.	Mrs. Higgins, River Road
St. Paul	Paterson	Miss Fannie R. Johnston, 81 Carroll St. Mrs. William Ramsgotham, 212—12 Avenue
St. Paul	Woodridge	Mrs. J. Kramer, 318 Woodridge Ave. Mrs. M. Kenny
St. Paul	Chatham	Mrs. L. M. Jones, Charles Place
St. Paul	East Orange	Mrs. F. W. Dusenberry, Main Street Mrs. A. M. Lincoln, 192 Prospect St. Mrs. James Wilde, 332 Lawn Ridge Road, Orange
St. Peter	Clifton	Mrs. Robert Johnson, Passaic Avenue
St. Peter	Essex Fells	Mrs. A. T. Post Mrs. John W. Kirkpatrick Jr.
St. Peter	Livingston	Mrs. Ralph DeCamp Mrs. George Kenny
St. Peter	Washington	Mrs. Arthur Sandys Mrs. Paul Schladensky

St. Peter Rochelle Park ... Mrs. Robert Miller
Mrs. Bartholomew
St. Peter Morristown Miss Anna Shaw, 16 Franklin Street
Mrs. George Hull
St. Philip Newark Mrs. Clara Scudder, 36 Calumet Street
St. Stephen Newark Mrs. A. B. Diss, 739 Clinton Ave.
St. Stephen Jersey City Mrs. Robert J. Porter, 225 Ege Avenue
Mrs. Kate McCoy
Transfiguration .. Towako

Transfiguration .. Woodcliff Mrs. J. M. Greer, 634 Monroe Place,
West N. Y.
Trinity Arlington Mrs. W. Van H. Filkins, 575 Kearney
Avenue

Trinity Bayonne Miss Jessie Dobson, 73 Trusk Street
Miss M. W. Earle
Trinity Grantwood Mrs. MacGrath, Anderson Ave.
Trinity Hillsdale Miss Emma Wilson
Trinity Hoboken Mrs. T. J. Gillespie, 1014 Hudson St.
Miss Elizabeth Pope, 160—13th St.
Trinity Irvington

Trinity Montclair Mrs. H. Steeder, Clairmont Avenue
Trinity Cath.... Newark Mrs. Joseph Johnson, 33 Saybrook Pl.
Miss Florence Congar, 1092 Broad St.
Holy Trinity West Orange Mrs. W. Wood, 102 Valley Road
Mrs. Kreeft, 16 Ashwood Terrace
Zion..... Belvedere Mrs. W. J. Anderson

NOTE. - First Name, President, Second Name, Secretary

WOMAN'S AUXILIARY

The President of each Auxiliary Branch or Guild is requested to fill out this blank and mail it to the Corresponding Secretary, Miss Ida B. Demarest, 398 Main St., Hackensack, immediately after Parish Election. Please type-write names and addresses.

Parishes finding last year's officers listed will know no reply was received to request for data for this list.

District City

Parish

Woman's Auxiliary or Guild
Please underline one or both if you have both.

President

Address

Treasurer

Address

U. T. O. Custodian

Address

Number of Members

Day of Meeting

Date of Annual Meeting

REPORT OF THE RECORDING SECRETARY

The report of the recording secretary of the Woman's Auxiliary of the Diocese of Newark covers a period of fifteen months from Oct. 6, 1920 to Dec. 31, 1921.

At the meeting in October, 1920, occurred the election and installation of the new officers with Mrs. Charles C. Boynton as President and the three Vice Presidents in charge of the three departments of the Auxiliary work. Mrs. Stephen Johnson, Religious Education; Mrs. Chester Lee Colton, the Supply Department, and Mrs. John Howell, Social Service. The eight Districts in the Diocese have perfected their organization and at the end of the year each District has officers corresponding to all the departments of the Auxiliary. The plan is working satisfactorily and new Parishes and Missions are more easily reached by taking the work nearer home.

A new constitution and by-laws for the Auxiliary was adopted in March 1921, making several important changes in the organization, all of which are now working satisfactorily.

Eleven regular meetings of the Auxiliary have been held and eleven meetings of the Executive Board.

The 50th Anniversary of the Woman's Auxiliary was observed October 5, 1921, in Trinity Church and at that time the Diocesan Branch made its offering to the Emery Fund.

A splendid meeting was held in connection with the Church Service League, at St. Luke's, Montclair, in May, for the United Thank Offering, and a Quiet Day with Bishop Lines, in Trinity Church, Newark, December 7th. Many interesting programs have been presented and the different departments have at all times kept their work before the women of the Auxiliary.

Among the speakers for the year besides Bishop Lines and Bishop Stearly, have been Bishop Gailor, the Presiding Bishop, Bishop Thurston of Oklahoma, and Bishop Colemore of Porto Rico.

The foreign field has been represented by Dr. Reifsneider from Japan and Miss Ambler, Deaconess Scott, Mrs. Creghill and Miss Gregg from China, and Miss Ridgely from Liberia.

Miss Lindley has spoken for the Auxiliary and many others have presented different parts of the work of the Church, in our own country.

Respectfully submitted,

HENRIETTA H. HAWES,
Recording Secretary.

REPORT OF FIRST VICE PRESIDENT IN CHARGE OF EDUCATION

The first annual report of your vice president in charge of education is necessarily a brief one as, while the report covers a year, the work is practically that of six months.

1921 auspiciously began with a most splendid piece of co-operation, the training classes held with the departments of social service and religious education.

These classes covered a period of several weeks in Epiphany and three were led by members of our department Lent, the season when discussion groups flourish, was marked by splendid classes, one interdenominational class on "Paul the Conqueror" and eight parish classes, six of which studied the "Survey."

In April with the adoption of the new constitution, the conduct of this department passed into the hands of the first vice president and since then, educational secretaries have been secured in six districts, personal presentation of education in at least half of the parishes and missions. In October a training conference for secretaries and officers was held at the Diocesan House. The opportunity to present the educational needs and plans of the

diocese at the district meetings has resulted in an interest, the increase of which is perhaps indicated by the sale of missionary calendars, 145 last year, 300 this year, and by the fact that where literature and speakers were urged upon parishes now they are demanded by them.

It is our earnest hope that this increase of interest and information may lead many women to consider the greatest need of the educational department—new leaders.

The Educational Department has reached the third stage in its development—the ground was ploughed by your first secretary, Miss Bertha Richards, whose consecration and devotion served as inspiration to a few devoted women—the seed was sown by Mrs. Sloane, who through six years gave so modestly of herself that few realized the magnificent work she did, or the inspiration she gave us who follow her.

It is my privilege to place the names of these two women among the diocesan officers in the Book of Remembrance, in the name of the Educational Department of the Woman's Auxiliary. And now this third stage, the harvest. It may be we shall not gather it but truly "the fields are white" and "the labourers are few." Is it not because the "will" of the women has not been stirred that so few are willing to do this work of information that is truly training for service?

Fellow Churchwomen, consider the stewardship of time as well as money and make a rich harvest possible.

Respectfully submitted,

ELIZABETH L. JOHNSON,
1st V. P. in charge of Education.

REPORT FOR 1921 OF SECOND VICE PRESIDENT IN CHARGE OF CHRISTIAN SOCIAL SERVICE

During the earlier part of this year our Christian Social Service work was carried on along our earlier lines, with certain improvements owing largely to the help of Mrs. Bond, in charge of Diocesan Activities, Mrs. Grymes, and other deeply interested women. But, since our Spring realignment, while most helpful co-operation continues, new methods have been adopted.

The pilgrimage of the President and three Vice Presidents to the eight District Meetings facilitated reorganization of the department, and the beginning of a brisk program of first hand information as to Christian Social Service needs and activities.

There are now District Secretaries for Christian Social Service in all but two of the Districts, with good hope of soon completing the list.

Only Paterson and Newton are not yet equipped. The appointment everywhere of Parish Secretaries for this Department is being pushed.

At numerous meetings, Diocesan, Parish, and others the work has been presented.

In November a Discussion Group was held with the new District Secretaries, and a few others, using the new study book, "The Social Opportunity of the Churchman."

This Department urgently pleads for all possible use of this brief, low-priced and enlightening book, this year. Leaders for Discussion Groups are available.

The principal immediate efforts recommended to Parish Branches are two—First, Group-Study of this book; second, hearty, and thoughtful, participation in the supervised Group-Visits to certain Institutions for the Unfortunate, in Diocese, County, and State, particularly in Spring, Summer and Autumn. As an outcome of the District Secretaries' Discussion Group, lists of institutions are available, and a policy has been formed which it is believed will be helpful if followed in the Group-Visiting.

This Autumn we were fortunate in securing and distributing a reprint of Bishop Lines' Labor Day Sermon.

Special attention has been repeatedly drawn to the Woman's Auxiliary Appeal to Uphold Moral Standards, and to the Sheppard-Towner Bill (for maternity and infant protection), and the Jones-Miller Bill (against drug abuses). About three hundred signatures were secured to the petition advocating the Limitation of Armaments.

It is believed that our support in Essex County elections gave material help to the election of an eminently qualified Freeholder, the first woman ever elected to this office which is one peculiarly appropriate to be borne in part by women. Other efforts towards practical good citizenship have been made.

That Mr. Huntington has promised, for this Department, and on the invitation of the women of Christ Church, Ridgewood, to give an instruction on the Church Mission of Help (at Ridgewood January 10), to all interested women, is one last source of thankfulness.

In resigning as a Diocesan Officer your Vice President begs to express her deep gratitude for her long association with the Newark Woman's Auxiliary, which has been a truly inspiring experience; and to bespeak for her successor the same living and loving co-operation that has ever been forthcoming.

Respectfully submitted,

January 4, 1922.

FREDERICA B. G. HOWELL.

REPORT OF THE THIRD VICE PRESIDENT IN CHARGE OF SUPPLY DEPARTMENT FOR THE DIOCESE OF NEWARK

January 1, 1921—January 1, 1922

The Institutions which were placed in our care in the quota for 1920-1921 were well provided with garments both old and new during the first six months of 1921. Indeed the Diocese may feel proud that the needs of all were met so comfortably. About \$7,000 was spent for Institutional boxes on the old quota. All this work was willingly, cheerfully and splendidly accomplished, each parish auxiliary seeming to put a personal and loving care in the effort. Most of them have notified me that letters received in response to their gifts made the work most worth while and added much to the pleasure of their meetings. Letters have also come to your Supply Secretary from the heads of some of the Institutions thanking the Diocese as a whole. Personal boxes are expected to be planned as Christmas boxes, but two extra ones were sent out in the early spring as well as a few additions to some of the Christmas boxes reported in 1920. The amount of money spent on these approximated \$1,000.00 Thus \$8,000.00 of our report counts on the quota of 1920-21.

Of the new allotment—twenty-seven missioners, two hospitals, four missions and three schools—very little other than twenty-two personal Christmas boxes have been taken care of and about \$4,100 has been spent on them. A very small quantity has as yet gone to the Institutions—probably \$900 would cover the valuation to date. Hence the total amount of the year's work in money is \$13,000.

A few of the branches are still uncertain about doing work for organizations outside of the allotment. Wherever it was possible, I have tried to make the matter clear to them that only such Institutions as have come to us through the Missions House are approved by the Bishop presiding over the Diocese in which they are located.

Any appeal that does not come through the Missions House must be referred to the Missions House before it can be cared for. In most instances we will find that these are unauthorized appeals, for when they are referred back to the Bishops, the replies have been such as to assure us that they were reported without authorization.

There have been some lists sent to places not in our allotment and for which we will receive no credit. The amount of money used thus far is approximately \$500. It behoves us to place our efforts in the correct spot—

that is, for the accomplishment of the work laid out for the Diocese by the Missions House. If there is any supplementary work to be done, we can do it only after consultation with the head of the Supply Department when our own allotment is completed.

This year we have an entirely new group of organizations and they cover the Indian, Colored, Porto Rican, Japanese and White fields. Let me urge that you give your earnest attention to the tremendous amount of work allotted to us. If we do not plan for it all carefully, we will not succeed in accomplishing it.

Let me express my sincere appreciation of the co-operation and team work of the District Directors and of each parish group which has helped to make whatever success we have had. Also to give hearty thanks to our ally, the Comfort Club.

FRANCES E. COLTON,
In charge of Supply Department.

BOXES SENT FROM SUPPLY DEPARTMENT

Oct. 1, 1920

26 Personal Boxes valued at.....	\$ 5,846.00
28 Mission (Institutional) Boxes valued at.....	940.00
<hr/>	
Total valuation for 1920.....	\$ 6,786.00

1921

30 Personal Boxes valued at.....	\$ 5,631.00
201 Institutional Boxes valued at.....	7,848.00
<hr/>	
Total valuation for 1921.....	\$13,479.00
Total number boxes sent from Supply Department, 285.	
Total valuation, \$20,265.00.	

REPORTS OF DISTRICTS

Report of Hackensack District

Hackensack District contains 26 Parishes and Missions and is widely spread over Bergen County. We are now beginning to feel better organized, having an Educational Secretary, a Social Secretary, Treasurer, and Supply Secretary.

We have held two meetings in 1920 and 1921, one in Tenafly in May, and one in Hackensack in October. Both were attended by the Guilds in towns near by, but there is difficulty in reaching the interest of the far away Missions.

There is great gain in the knowledge and interest in the work of the District and as soon as a Guild is well acquainted with the purposes and reason for the District Organization, we see the members at our meetings.

I have had two meetings for the Presidents of the Guilds to stimulate interest and give out notices of Educational and Social Work, and had about the same result in attendance. Our box work is cut out in Englewood by the Supply Secretary, Mrs. Cott, and so far, she has been able to deliver it. Several Parish Guilds are already sewing for us and Englewood and Hackensack each sent a Personal Box to a Clergyman, prepared with loving care and much pleasure.

Gradually the Director is learning to know the people personally and I feel sure that many church women feel their Diocese of Newark is much more to them than a name, and have a pride in its work and reputation.

SARA W. WHITMORE,
Director.

REPORT OF THE WOMEN'S AUXILIARY, DISTRICT OF MORRISTOWN

Jan. 1, 1921—Dec. 31, 1921

The District of Morristown includes ten parishes. Eight of these have branches of the Woman's Auxiliary. St. John's Church, Boonton, has a Parish Aid Society, of which the Woman's Auxiliary is a branch. St. John's Church, Dover, has a Helping Hand Society and a Rector's Aid. St. Peter's Church, Mt. Arlington, has been re-organized and hopes to have a Woman's Guild.

All of these organizations have weekly meetings during the winter. Box work is done by the greater number and during the year 1921, seven personal boxes and seventeen institutional boxes have been sent from the District. Money has been sent to Japan, Africa, Mexico, China, the Near East Relief, Brazil, Diocese of Newark and to Mission stations in our own country. Four parishes do definite parish work in addition to the Auxiliary work; five have a branch of the Church Periodical Club; four of the Comfort Club; six have contributed to the Bishop's Fund or the Bishop's houses; five have reported for the United Thank Offering and two for the Emery Fund, and four scholarships are supported regularly. All have subscribers to the Spirit of Missions.

The Chairman of the District has visited every parish and has spoken at meetings. Many of them have had other speakers. One Auxiliary had a class on St. Paul during Lent and another had weekly talks on the book, "The Alaskan Missions," written by Arch-Deacon Stuck.

Two District meetings were held, one at Calvary Parish, Summit, on April 19. Eight of the ten parishes in the District reported. An address was made by the Rev. Paul Roberts of Holy Trinity, West Orange. Mrs. Boynton, president of the Diocesan Auxiliary, explained the budget plan and Mrs. Herbert Baker of South Orange, spoke for the Emery Fund.

The Fall meeting was held in Morristown on October 27 at St. Peter's Church and Parish House. Holy Communion was celebrated by the Rev. Dr. Brookman, assisted by six of the clergy of the District, and the Rev. Mr. Craighill of Nan Chang, China, told of his missionary work. In the afternoon the business meeting was held in the Parish House. Mrs. Boynton, the president of the Diocesan Auxiliary, and Mrs. Howell, Mrs. Johnson and Mrs. Colton, the three vice presidents, were the speakers. Reports were made by eight parishes in which the plans for the coming year were outlined. These plans are now being carried on.

FLORENCE W. HARMON, *Secretary.*

KATHARINE H. MORGAN,
Chairman.

REPORT OF DISTRICT OF JERSEY CITY

The District of Jersey City includes all the cities of Hudson County except Harrison. It lies almost entirely along the top of the Palisades, from Woodcliff on the north to Bayonne on the south with Hoboken and lower Jersey City on the lowlands by the Hudson. The churches are nineteen in number and one Mission. None of them can be called really wealthy and their condition is at present affected by two main circumstances: First, there is a yearly exodus of many of the more substantial families to the suburbs or New York, and secondly because we are in one of the strongest Roman Catholic centers in this part of the country. The churches, however, are doing their best and last year all but two contributed either by money or labor to the work of the Auxiliary.

The interest in the work is also much greater as is shown by the attendance at the meetings. There were three of these held since the first of the year, each one being larger than the one preceding it.

The women have been thoroughly aroused by the message that has been brought by the very able speakers who so generously gave of their time to come and help us. Owing to these meetings and the help of the Rectors of the parishes three more of the churches joined in the work than had ever done before.

The box work has been greatly helped this year by the more complete knowledge that we have of it. A full account of the work to be done by the Diocese has been given to the District Chairman and copies of this have been distributed by her to the various churches. Most of the churches have been visited during the year by the District officers and many of them more than once. There is every indication that better work will be done during the coming year.

Respectfully submitted,

ISABEL A. TRENCH,
Chairman.

Jan. 3, 1922

REPORT OF THE MONTCLAIR DISTRICT, DIOCESE OF NEWARK
Year ending December 31, 1921

The Montclair District is the smallest, consisting of three large churches, four small churches, and four Missions, one a Mission for the colored people.

Most of these churches are near together, and very accessible. The District is well organized, and has the co-operation of all the churches, and most of the Missions. The Executive Committee, consisting of the six officers, and the president and one other delegate from each Auxiliary or Guild, meets regularly, once a month, in the Parish House of Christ Church, Bloomfield and Glen Ridge.

At each meeting, beside necessary business, some department of work is discussed—The Comfort Club, W. U. T. O. or the Educational work, etc., and the person in each Parish in charge of that work is specially invited. A cutting center for the District has been established in St. James' Parish House, Upper Montclair, and the work is going along nicely. One personal box was taken before Christmas and there would have been others, if they had been available.

Three all day meetings have been held during the year in different parts of the District, a Quiet Day, a Spring Meeting and a Fall Meeting, also a very successful Young People's Rally.

Interesting speakers, including two from foreign fields, were heard at each of these meetings, and there has been a good attendance from most of the churches and Missions.

There are six hundred and fifty blue boxes of the W. U. T. O. reported as being used in seven churches, and many subscribers of the Spirit of Missions.

The District, working as a whole, sent a large package of fancy articles to two of the Missions to help their Building Fund sales. It also sent a delegate to the Princeton Summer Conference.

The end of the first year of organized work shows an increase in District consciousness, with a greater interest in each other on the part of the women of the churches, and a strong desire to reach out with a friendly, helping hand to the Missions not yet closely associated.

With great hopes for the future, and a consecrated desire to advance the Kingdom of God, by means of the Montclair District,

Respectfully submitted,

MRS. REGINALD WILLIAMS,
Chairman.

REPORT OF THE WOMEN'S AUXILIARY, DISTRICT OF NEWARK

Jan. 1921—Jan. 1922

The District of Newark is composed of twenty-two churches, sixteen in the city, and the others in Nutley, Belleville, Arlington, Vailsburg, Harrison and Irvington. Before the organization of this District, some three years ago, Mrs. Stearly planned to use St. James' Parish House for a central work room for the cutting out of garments in quantity, and distributing these ready-to-be-sewed articles to any parishes that would make up the work to be sent to the mission fields. This central work room was transferred last year to Grace Church Parish House, where have met for work every week women from St. John's, St. Andrew's, St. Barnabas', St. James', St. Mark's, St. Paul's, St. Thomas', St. George's, Christ, Grace, Trinity Cathedral, and others. This regular meeting together has created an inter-church friendliness that has been of the greatest value to the District of Newark, and has been the important factor in the development and unity of our organization.

There have been two District meetings held during the year. The first, on the afternoon of April 6th, at the residence of Miss Edith E. Grice, 360 Ridge St. There were thirty-eight women present, representing eleven parishes. Informal reports, a general conference on the next season's work, an address by Mrs. Herbert S. Baker, explaining the special appeal for the Emery Fund, followed by a social hour. The second meeting was held Oct. 19th, at St. James' Church, Belleville. This was the first of the eight all day District meetings in the Fall and was to inaugurate an annual custom, viz., that the parishes of the District were to get together at the beginning of each season. A short service in the beautiful little church was conducted by the Rev. Percy T. Olton, Rector, at eleven o'clock. The women then adjourned to the Parish House, and the day's program was as follows:

Greeting from President Woman's Auxiliary, Mrs. Boynton.

Reports from parishes of all missionary work of the year, seventeen churches making reports.

Ten-minute address on finances, Mrs. Rodie, Treas.

Box luncheon, generously supplemented and served by the women of St. James'.

At one-thirty resumed session.

The work of the three departments of the Woman's Auxiliary was most ably presented by Mrs. Stephen S. Johnson, Educational Secretary; Mrs. John W. Howell, Social Service Secretary; Mrs. Chester Lee Colton, Supply Secretary; after which a half hour was spent in answering the questions in the Question Box, an innovation which proved interesting and profitable.

At three o'clock an address was given by Rev. Mr. Craighill, of Nan Chang, China, after which the meeting adjourned.

It is gratifying to add to this report that through the personal efforts of Mrs. Marie J. Quinlan, of St. Andrews, three new parishes have become interested in the work of the Woman's Auxiliary and will help with the sewing this year: St. Mary Magdalene, St. Stephen's, and Trinity, Irvington.

An organization of young women at Christ Church, Harrison, Mrs. Wm. J. Tilley, President, are offering to do some of the box work.

Respectfully submitted,

BERTHA N. BALDWIN.

REPORT OF THE DISTRICT OF NEWTON

From January, 1921, to January, 1922

The District of Newton is the one rural district of the diocese, covering the two northwestern counties of Sussex and Warren, and includes ten parishes and missions.

On account of distances it is impossible to hold many meetings, but during the past year two were held, one at Belvidere and one at Hamburg. Six parishes and missions were represented at the two meetings.

Most of the Auxiliary work of the district is done, not by separate branches of the Auxiliary, but by parish guilds working at certain times of the year as Auxiliary branches. Four guilds have helped with the work of the Supply Department, and have given money gifts for the General Work of the Church and to the budget of the Diocesan Branch of the Auxiliary. Ninety-two women of the district last year had a share in the United Thank Offering.

MARY M. MORFORD,
Director for the District of Newton.

ANNUAL REPORT, DISTRICT OF ORANGE

January 1, 1921-1922

The District of Orange is composed of sixteen suburban parishes, each having a well organized branch of the woman's Auxiliary. The District organization has been enlarged. In addition to our efficient Secretary, Mrs. J. W. Fisher, it now has Vice-Chairman pro tem. Mrs. A. P. Caldwell, Christ Church, East Orange; Box Supply Secretary, Mrs. Samuel Southmayd, Grace Church, Orange; Educational Secretary, Mrs. Russell Brittingham, All Saints, Orange; Social Service, Mrs. Herbert Barry, Holy Innocents, West Orange. The two latter, when appointed, took a course of training under the Diocesan heads of their respective departments.

There have been two officers' preliminary conferences, and two district meetings. One at St. George's Church, Maplewood, in May, where the budget plan was outlined by Mrs. Rodie, Diocesan Treasurer, and our Church's missionary work in China was ably presented by Dr. Y. Y. Tsu, of St. John's University, Shanghai. The second meeting, in October, convened at St. Andrew's Church, South Orange,—well attended for a day that could hardly be exceeded for disagreeable weather conditions. The Diocesan Secretaries for box work, education and social service described their plans for the winter; a new departure, current events in the Church's mission fields, was successfully carried through by Mrs. Grymes, Grace Church, Orange; and we were fortunate enough to be addressed by a Missionary Bishop, Rt. Rev. Hiram Hulse, upon conditions existing in his field, Havana, Cuba.

Our greatest need and problem is to find more officers to carry on the district work. The blue box of the Woman's United Thank Offering would be in the hands of many more if we had some one to present the subject; the Comfort Club and Spirit of Missions should have twice the number of subscribers listed, and the department of Social Service is represented in only a few of the Auxiliaries.

I wish to express my appreciation of the spirit of co-operation existing within the District and shown by other Districts to my own. I found St. Agnes' representatives at a program meeting at Christ Church; All Saints, at another; Grace, at Incarnation's Fair; Livingston, at St. Andrew's Fair; St. Luke's, Montclair, lending part of a program meeting to a District of Orange neighbor; representatives of Holy Innocents and St. Paul's, running almost a jitney service for those farthest away from the Maplewood meeting; St. Mark's and Christ Church cutting garments for the Districts of Paterson and Hackensack, and Holy Communion for St. Peter's, Livingston. Surely this interest and co-operation augur well for the future and we may look forward with confidence to an increasing usefulness for 1922.

Respectfully submitted,

EDITH B. ROSS,
Chairman, District of Orange.

**REPORT OF THE PATERSON DISTRICT OF THE WOMAN'S
AUXILIARY**

January, 1921—January, 1922

The Paterson District has twenty-one parishes and missions. It includes large industrial cities, suburban residence districts, small towns and country churches. The Woman's Auxiliary has some touch with sixteen of these places. Five are as yet entirely unreached. During the last few months the two parishes in Passaic have been added to our number and the chairman has begun efforts to establish connection with them.

The most important step of the year was our first annual election of officers in May—the organization of the district.

On account of sickness in her family, Mrs. Kitts, Educational Secretary, has been obliged to resign after having made a good start with the work. Her resignation is received with the greatest regret.

Two district meetings have been held during the year. At the May meeting we enjoyed a delightful day with the hospitable ladies of Christ Church, Pompton Lakes. Good delegations were present from many of the parishes, large bus loads coming up from Paterson. The Holy Communion was celebrated in the charming church, the election held and other business transacted. The speakers were: Mrs. Herbert Baker, "The Emery Fund"; Mrs. John Sloane, "Education"; Mrs. Artley B. Parson, "The Work in the Philippines"; Mrs. Henry Leverich, "The United Thank Offering."

The November meeting was held at the Church of the Holy Communion, Paterson, where we were most warmly received. The speakers were the President of the Auxiliary, the three Vice Presidents, explaining plans for their departments; Miss Grace Lake, on the Americanization work she is doing in Garfield; Deaconess Scott, head of St. Hilda's School, Wuchang, China, who gave a most interesting talk on Chinese Girlhood.

The Chairman has held one Council meeting with delegates from the parishes, and the chairman of the Supply Department of the District has had one meeting with the heads of the work committees of the parishes.

The work done for the Supply Department during the year 1921 totals something over 1,000 garments. The value approximately \$500.00. The District is credited with \$135.00 for the Emery Fund.

Our immediate needs are: Secretaries for the Educational and Social Service Departments; more calls from the parishes for speakers and programs at parish and guild meetings; people in every church taking and *reading* "The Spirit of Missions"; *every* woman in the District a contributor to the Woman's United Thank Offering—we all want to share in that great offering made by the women of the church at Portland, Oregon, next September.

LOUISE HUTCHISON,
District Chairman.

**REPORT OF WOMEN'S UNITED THANK OFFERING CUSTODIAN,
DIOCESE OF NEWARK**

DIOCESE OF NEWARK

From Jan. 1, 1921—Jan. 1, 1922

Oct. 1, 1920, Received from former Custodian.....	\$ 6,709.40
Oct. 1, 1920, to Jan. 1, 1921, Receipts.....	829.48
Jan. 1, 1921, to Jan. 1, 1922, from Parishes and Missions..	8,299.52
May 4, 1921, Collection at Anniversary Service.....	126.23
Interest on Bank Balances.....	16.26
	<hr/>
	\$15,980.89

Balance in Orange Nat. Bank.....	\$ 7,004.45
Balance in Montclair Trust Co.....	2,976.44
U. S. Cts. of Indebtedness 5½% due Feb. 16, 1922.....	6,000.00
	<hr/>
Number Parishes contributing, 118.	\$15,980.89
Number Parishes, about 130	

Respectfully submitted,

F. ROSALIE HALPIN,
Audited. *Custodian.*

REPORT OF THE BISHOP'S MISSIONARY FUND

In charge of Mrs. Wm. Read Howe, appointed by the Bishop
Jan. 1, 1921—Jan. 1, 1922

Balance on hand Jan. 1, 1921.....	\$ 493.07
Received from Col. Wallace from 22 Churches.....	\$ 499.00
At Large	110.00
From Comfort Club.....	400.00
	<hr/>
	1,009.00
Total Money	\$ 1,502.07
Disbursements	
For Clerical Suits.....	\$ 400.00
To families	870.00
	<hr/>
	1,270.00
Balance Jan. 1, 1922.....	\$ 232.07

Respectfully submitted,

ANNIE H. B. HOWE.

Before closing this report may I add that when we all know and appreciate the real value of this fund every Branch of the Auxiliary will want to contribute. The money is for the wives of our missionaries in our own Diocese and used by the Bishop not only for Christmas and Easter gifts but to help when trouble and illness come. One who received the ten dollars for Christmas cheer wrote to me she would use it to help pay for her nurse. An added cheque for twenty-five dollars was sent to her at once filling a sore need. Surely we want all the churches to help our Bishop with this very personal emergency work.

A. H. B. HOWE.

REPORT OF EMERY FUND FOR DIOCESE OF NEWARK

Received from 68 Parishes.....	\$ 2,160.27
Paid for Book of Remembrance.....	30.00
	<hr/>
Balance	\$ 2,130.27
The Quota for Newark was \$1,500.00.	
Number of Parishes in Diocese, 133.	

GERTRUDE S. BAKER,
Diocesan Chairman of Fund.

REPORT OF COMFORT CLUB
In charge of Mrs. Clark

Received from 41 Parishes.....	\$ 2,540.01
Disbursements	
To the Bishop's Fund (suits).....	\$ 400.00
To Boxes in Bishop's Fund.....	1,200.00
To Supply Department (suits).....	174.55
To Supply Department (garments).....	740.00
	<u>2,514.55</u>
Balance	\$ 25.46
Number Garments Contributed, 2,435.	

How much more we could do if a Comfort Club Secretary was appointed in every parish and no parish is so small that it could not supplement its work by individual gifts to the Comfort Club. A contribution of two or more new articles and thirty-five cents annually constitutes a membership. The money to be used for clerical suits only. Those who have the work in hand can tell what a blessing the Comfort Club has been to them. This is the only fund to supply clerical suits in our own Diocese and also the calls that come from the Missions House unless some parish sends individually.

MRS. CHARLES F. CLARK.

TREASURER'S REPORT

Jan. 1, 1921—Jan. 1, 1922

Marian S. Rodie in account with Woman's Auxiliary, Diocese of Newark.

	<i>Receipts</i>	
Balance Jan. 1921.....		\$1,442.07
Foreign Missions—		
China	\$378.50	
Japan	278.50	
Africa	101.00	
Cuba	39.00	
Santo Domingo	25.00	
Mexico	112.00	
		<u>\$934.00</u>
Domestic Missions—		
White	\$339.00	
Colored	89.25	
Indian	160.00	
Island Possessions	365.70	
		<u>953.95</u>
Diocesan Missions—		
Bishop's Missionary Fund.....	651.50	
Diocesan Institutions	278.49	
Church Mission of Help.....	15.00	
Social Service	45.50	
		<u>990.49</u>
Miscellaneous—		
Comfort Club	\$551.81	
Box Work Fund.....	1,196.07	
Emergency Fund	33.00	
Educational	33.00	
General Missions	50.00	
		<u>1,863.88</u>
Expense Account	640.92	
		<u>\$5,383.24</u>
		<u>\$6,825.31</u>

Disbursements

Foreign—		
China	\$242.00	
Japan	278.50	
Africa	101.00	
Cuba	39.00	
Santo Domingo	25.00	
Mexico	115.00	
		\$800.50
Domestic—		
White	\$340.20	
Colored	65.25	
Indian	220.00	
Island Possessions	331.00	
		956.45
Diocesan—		
Bishop's Missionary Fund.....	\$651.50	
Diocesan Institutes	234.99	
		886.49
Miscellaneous—		
Box Work Fund (Supply Department).....	\$1,488.83	
Emergency	11.00	
Educational	25.00	
General Missions	50.00	
Comfort Club	574.55	
		2,149.38
Expense Account	806.94	
	Total.....	\$5,599.76
Balance Jan. 1922.....		\$1,225.55

Distributed as follows:

Foreign—		
China	\$186.50	
Domestic—		
White	\$75.00	
Colored	221.00	
Island Possessions	34.70	
		330.70
Diocesan—		
Diocesan Institutions	\$43.50	
Church Mission Help.....	15.00	
Social Service	45.50	
		104.00
Miscellaneous—		
Comfort Club	\$87.78	
Box Fund	270.31	
Emergency	69.00	
Educational	8.00	
		435.09
Expense Account	169.26	
		\$1,225.55

NOTE.—Expense account covers printing, postage, officers' and departmental expenses and stationery.

MARIAN S. RODIE,
Treasurer.

Audited by

Mrs. W. N. Vanderpool.

BUDGET, JANUARY 1, 1922—JANUARY 1, 1923
(Estimated Needs)

Administration Expenses—Printing, Postage, Expenses of Officers and District Directors.....	\$ 500.00
Department of Missions and Supply Department—Materials, Freight, etc.	1,500.00
Bishop's Missionary Fund—(To be used at discretion of the Bishop for Missionary Clergy of the Diocese).....	800.00
Advance Work (Special) Nan Chang—(To be met by all parishes) ..	1,500.00
Department of Education—(Advance work, training class for leaders, literature and programs).....	300.00
Department of Social Service—Diocesan Institutions and Advance Work	400.00

NOTE.—Nan Chang—To open the doors of a great central portion of China, A School, A Church, A Home, are needed.

LIST OF PLEDGES AND SCHOLARSHIPS

*Alice Broome Scholarship, Rowland Hall, Salt Lake, Utah.....	\$50.00
In memory of Miss Broome, a member of Grace Church, Orange.	
Paid for by this Church. This Scholarship is now paid into the Nation Wide Campaign Fund.	
*Bishop Starkey Scholarship, Rowland Hall, Salt Lake, Utah.....	40.00
In memory of one of our Bishops. Paid for by Calvary Church, Summit	
*Bishop Leonard Scholarship, Rowland Hall, Salt Lake, Utah.....	50.00
In memory of one of our Bishops who did much for the Indian Schools.	
Paid for by Church of Holy Communion, South Orange.	
*Jessie A. Ashley Scholarship, Christ School, Arden, N. C.....	50.00
In memory of Mrs. Ashley, a member of Grace Church, Orange, and paid for by that Church. Mrs. Ashley for many years was a Director of the Woman's Auxiliary, Newark. This Scholarship is paid into the Nation Wide Campaign Fund.	

COLORED

F. B. Carter Scholarship, St. Augustine's, Raleigh.....	50.00
In honor of Archdeacon Carter, a former Rector of St. Luke's, Montclair and paid for by that Church.	

INDIAN

Bishop Lines Scholarship, St. Elizabeth's School, South Dakota....	60.00
Mary M. Lines, Scholarship, St. Mary's School, South Dakota.....	60.00
In honor of Mrs. Lines, wife of our present Bishop of Newark. Paid for by Trinity Cathedral.	
Carrie L. Boylan Scholarship, Shoshone, Wyoming.....	40.00
In honor of Miss Boylan, who for many years was Indian Director in the Woman's Auxiliary at Newark. Paid for by Christ Church, Short Hills.	
Hospital Work among the Seminoles of South Florida.....	100.00
Paid for by St. Luke's, Montclair.	
Joseph E. Blanchard Scholarship, St. Elizabeth's School.....	60.00
In Memoriam. Paid for by Grace Church, Madison.	

ALASKA

Julius Scholarship.....	100.00
Paid for by St. Paul's, Englewood, Christ Church, Short Hills and St. James, Upper Montclair.	

JAPAN

Bishop Starkey Scholarship, St. Agnes School, Kyoto.....	50.00
Named for the Second Bishop of Newark (1880—1890). It is given to the "Girls High School" at Kyoto, which was formerly known as St. Agnes School. It is paid for by St. Paul's, Paterson.	
Lewis Cameron Scholarsip, St. Margaret's School, Tokyo.....	50.00
A Scholarship for St. Paul's College, Tokyo and named for a former Rector of the Church of the Holy Communion, South Orange. It is paid for by the Church of the Holy Communion.	
Bible Women.....	100.00
Paid for by Calvary Church, Summit and Christ Church, East Orange.	

CHINA

Bishop Odenheimer Scholarship, St. Mary's Hall, Shanghai.....	50.00
This Scholarship is named for the first Bishop of Newark (1874—1880) who had up to this time been the third Bishop of the Diocese of New Jersey when there was but one Diocese in the State. Paid for by St. Marks, West Orange.	
Anna E. Niles Scholarship, St. Hilda's Schoo1, Wuchang.....	50.00
Named for a former Director of the Foreign Missionary Work in the Woman's Auxiliary of this Diocese. Paid for by Grace Church, Madison.	
George Chadwell Scholarship, St. Mary's Hall, Shanghai.....	50.00
A Memorial which was at first supported by Mrs. Dillingham of Calvary Church, Summit. Since her death has been paid for by the Church of the Redeemer, Morristown.	

AFRICA

Hope Scholarship, Girl's Training Institute, St. Paul's River.....	25.00
This School is at Bromley, ten miles from Monrovia and is known as the Julia C. Emery Hall. This is a transplanted Scholarship as years ago it was placed in St. Elizabeth's School, South Dakota to help Bishop Hare but later it was transferred to Africa. Paid for by St. John's, Montclair.	
Calvary Church Scholarship, Collegiate and Divinity School, Cuttinton, Epiphany Hall.....	40.00
Paid for by Christ Church, East Orange.	

MEXICO

Julia Starkey Scholarship, Hooker School.....	80.00
In memory of Mrs. Starkey, wife of a former Bishop of Newark. Paid for by Christ Church, Short Hills.	
Anna E. Wright Memorial, Nopala Hospital.....	100.00
In memory of Anna E. Wright who was Director for the Colored Missions (1883—1886) and Director for Mexico, Cuba and Brazil (1896—1912) and who died March 8, 1912. Paid for by all the branches of the Auxiliary.	

RECEPTION DAYS

St. Katherine's Home
32 Reservoir Avenue, Jersey City

Ascension Day, 4-6

Bonnie Brae Farm
Near Millington
Memorial Day, May 30th

House of the Holy Comforter
Mt. Pleasant Avenue, West Orange
All Saints Day, November 1st, 3-5

SUMMER SCHOOL FOR CHURCH WORKERS

Province of New York and New Jersey

Princeton, New Jersey

Date, July 3-14

Geneva, New York

Date, July 3-14

LIST OF DELEGATES TO TRIENNIAL

Portland, Oregon, September 6, 1922

Delegates

MRS. C. H. BOYNTON

MRS. S. S. JOHNSON

MRS. C. E. HUTCHISON

MRS. WM. S. RODIE

MRS. C. L. COLTON

Alternates

MRS. WM. R. HOWE

MRS. C. H. VAN NOSTRAND

MRS. J. HAWES

MRS. W. R. STEARLY

MEETINGS

Auxiliary Meetings are held at Trinity Parish House,
Rector Street, Newark.

Executive Meetings are held at the Diocesan House,
21 Washington Street, Newark.

OFFICERS FOR 1919 TO OCT. 1920

Honorary Presidents

MRS. EDWIN S. LINES
MRS. WILSON R. STEARLY
MRS. J. HULL BROWNING

President

MRS. JOSEPH W. DANFORTH

Vice Presidents

MRS. JOHN W. HOWELL
MRS. CHARLES H. BOYNTON

Treasurer

MRS. WILLIAM S. RODIE

(Successor to Mrs. Reginald Baker, who resigned)

Auditor

MRS. JAMES R. STRONG

Recording Secretary

MISS E. C. CLARK

Corresponding Secretary

MISS M. A. HAYES

Treasurer of the United Offering

MRS. EDWARD V. WURTZ

Educational Department

MRS. JOHN S. SLOANE

Librarian

MISS EDITH GRICE

Comfort Club

MRS. CHARLES F. CLARK

Diocesan Missions

MRS. WM. READ HOWE

Diocesan Activities

MRS. JOHN W. HOWELL

Church Mission of Help

MISS AMY O'GRADY, Secretary

Altar Guild

MRS. ARCHIBALD MERCER

Allied Societies

The Church Periodical Club

MISS LUCY B. SHAW

The Girls' Friendly Society

MRS. FRANKLIN VAN WINKLE

American Church Institute for Negroes

MRS. CHARLES H. VAN NOSTRAND

District Chairmen

District of Englewood

MRS. CHARLES H. BOYNTON

District of Hackensack

MRS. F. B. WHITMORE

District of Morristown

MRS. H. L. GANTT

District of Orange

MRS. JAMES W. McCULLOCH

District of Newton

MISS MARY MORFORD

District of Paterson

MRS. CHARLES E. HUTCHISON

District of Newark

MRS. CHARLES H. BALDWIN

District of Jersey City

MISS ROSALINE TOWAR

Box Director

MRS. FRANCES E. COBB

Foreign Field

MRS. T. POWERS FARR

Registrar

MISS HOLMES

OFFICERS, OCT 1920

Honorary Presidents

MRS. EDWIN S. LINES

MRS. WILSON R. STEARLY

MRS. J. HULL BROWNING

President

MRS. CHARLES H. BOYNTON

129 Engle Street, Englewood

First Vice President

MRS. STEPHEN S. JOHNSON

377 Charlton Avenue, South Orange

Second Vice President

MRS. CHESTER LEE COLTON

49 Milford Avenue, Newark

Third Vice President

MRS. JOHN W. HOWELL

211 Ballantine Parkway, Newark

Recording Secretary
MRS. JOHN HAWES
64 Overlook Avenue, Ridgewood

Corresponding Secretary
MISS MADELINE WELCH
302 Union Street, Hackensack
(Successor to Miss Holmes)

Treasurer
MRS. WILLIAM S. RODIE
255 Scotland Road, South Orange

United Thank Offering Custodian
MRS. FRANCIS HALPIN
177 Union Street, Montclair

Comfort Club
MRS. CHARLES F. CLARK
98 Weequahic Avenue, Newark

Auditor
MRS. W. K. VANDERPOOL
Vose Avenue, South Orange

Committees
Publicity
Chairman, MRS. CHARLES H. VAN NOSTRAND
28 Berkeley Avenue, Orange

Program
Chairman, MRS. CHARLES E. HUTCHISON
14 Prospect Terrace, East Orange

Finance
Chairman, MRS. FRANKLIN VAN WINKLE
297 Broadway, Paterson

Emery Fund
MRS. HERBERT S. BAKER
366 Hartford Road, South Orange

District Directors
Hackensack
MRS. F. B. WHITMORE
162 Chestnut Street, Rutherford

Jersey City
MRS. S. A. TRENCH
820 Montgomery Avenue, Jersey City

Montclair
MRS. REGINALD H. WILLIAMS
17 Montclair Avenue, Montclair

Morristown

MRS. HENRY K. MORGAN
80 Miller Road, Morristown

Newton

MISS MARY MORFORD
34 Linwood Avenue, Newton

Newark

MRS. CHARLES H. BALDWIN
43 South Street, Newark

Orange

MRS. T. N. Ross
52 Lenox Avenue, East Orange

Paterson

MRS. CHARLES E. HUTCHISON
14 Prospect Terrace, East Orange

Bishop's Missionary Fund

MRS. WM. READ HOWE
Llewellyn Park, West Orange

(*Addenda*)

October 1919—January 1921

FOREWORD

The Woman's Auxiliary of the Diocese of Newark between the years of 1919 and 1921 passed through what might be called a reconstruction period. It was during these years that it passed from working along old lines—that is, working as a Diocesan Unit—to working in the "Eight Divisions" or Districts with its central executive and organizing and inspiring body in Newark.

Mrs. Joseph W. Danforth of East Orange was President of the Auxiliary up to October 1920 when she was succeeded by Mrs Charles H. Boynton of Englewood. It was Mrs. Danforth who brought about the formation of the Districts and the electing of District Directors. The extension of her idea has given us the present plan of organization under the new constitution.

Mrs. Danforth had the Diocese divided into nine districts, these have been reduced to eight by the union of the Englewood and Hackensack districts which, after working one year under the original plan, seemed a wise change to make. Besides the innovation of the Districts and Directors the following changes have been made: Three Vice-Presidents where formerly there were two, representing the three departments of 1, Missions and Supply, 2, Education and 3, Social Service. These, with two Secretaries—Treasurer—Eight District Directors—the Chairman of the Bishop's Missionary Fund—Comfort Club Chairman—Custodian of the Woman's United Thank Offering, besides the Chairmen of the Finance and Publicity Committees now constitute the executive of the Auxiliary. Another change to be noted is the return to the old form of Custodian, in place of Treasurer of the W. U. T. O.

The work of the Auxiliary went steadily forward during these years of reconstruction—Boxes were filled both personal and institutional—pledges were met and Educational work was carried on with interest and increasing zeal. Especially is it noted that there is a deepening and advancing interest in the Educational Department as shown in the number of leaders and the increased demand for Classes and Speakers from all parts of the Diocese.

A growing interest and enthusiasm has been the result of the District Meetings as many parishes have come into line which heretofore had little or no interest outside of local affairs.

The work of reorganizing the Supply Department along Red Cross lines took patience and courage and strenuous work on the part of the new officers but finally the new plans were put across and made to work with comparative smoothness and each year brings a better grasping of new ways.

Not at all easy has it been for an organization which has gone along beaten paths for nearly fifty years to give itself to new ideas. We want to express our admiration for the beautiful cooperative spirit which has been exhibited in the readjustment.

With the organizing of the Nation Wide Campaign many responsibilities of money raising were removed from the Auxiliary. Then, too, with the forming of the Church Service League in the Diocese, we lost the affiliated Societies of the Girls Friendly—the Altar Guild—the Church Periodical Club and the Institute for Negroes—all of these are now in the League Federation to which the Auxiliary, too, belongs.

NOTES FROM DISTRICT REPORTS 1920

From Hackensack District—Hasbrouck Heights sending a box to St. Katherine's Home, Hillsdale to Dr. Burke in Alaska, two hundred articles of clothes. Oradell, nineteen articles of clothing and sixteen pairs of socks to Mission Home, Virginia. On May 21, a District Meeting in Grace Church, Rutherford with fifty women present—Mrs. Danforth, Mrs. Cobb, Mrs. Sloane and Mrs. Wurts as speakers. On October 27, a large all day District Meeting was held in St. Peter's Parish House, Morristown, over a hundred women were present. Every parish in the District was represented except Mt. Arlington. Bishop Stearly and Canon Elmendorf made stirring appeals for a great awakening in the hearts of the people on behalf of the Church. In December, in St. Peter's, at a second District Meeting, Mrs. Colton brought out most forcibly the great need in the Church all over the world, at home and abroad, for personal consecration and unselfish giving of both life and means.

Newark District writes—there was most enthusiastic response from everybody, many questions were asked and most ably answered by Mrs. Cobb who had graciously consented to attend this meeting that she might give help to the new management out of her long and loving experience. Fifteen Churches and Missions are busy with Grace Church, the Diocesan Supply Centre, where the cutting and distributing of garments goes on under volunteer helpers.

Englewood, from its District, sends a delegate to the Princeton Summer School, all expenses paid. Makes suggestions for the summer months such as Bible study, revival of Grace at meals, reading the book called Neighbors and a visit to the Bergen County Home.

We are sorry not to be able to quote more but space is limited. Other stories, at another time of the many things of interest in other parts of our Diocese.

REPORT OF EDUCATIONAL DEPARTMENT

From May 1918 to January 1921

Prior to May 1918 the work of the Educational Department confined itself almost exclusively to furthering missionary education in its various aspects. From that time however, the scope of our activities has materially changed and broadened.

In June 1918 we were asked to serve the War Commission of the Diocese, by helping to bring before the women of our Church "The Advent Call." *(That call to deeper prayer and fuller service felt to be so vital in view of the World War). Throughout the Summer and right up to Advent members of the department helped to make this movement known, training and sending out leaders, who in turn, helped to prepare messengers and intercessors.

In Epiphany 1919, two training classes were held and during Lent leaders from these classes conducted several discussion groups, the text book used being, Bishop Burleson's "Our Church and Our Country" and a course based on the Bible entitled "Christ in the New World Order."

August 1919 in response to a demand from the Church in the Diocese the department began work for the "Nation Wide Campaign". In October a class to train women speakers was held, as a result, a Speakers Bureau was organized and women went throughout the Diocese endeavoring to enlist interest in the Campaign.

January 1920, we were asked to cooperate with the Diocesan Board of Religious Education in planning a united program for the study of Christian Americanization. Classes were conducted for the training of leaders and during Lent a number of groups of men and women met to consider the problem, which at this time, seems fraught with a deeper significance than ever before. Text books used were "Neighbors" by Dr. Sturgis, and Christian Americanization by Dr. Brooks.

In the Fall of 1920, the department again began its activities by endeavoring to increase interest in the Nation Wide Campaign. With the help of Bishop Stearly and some of the clergy, and of the Executive Secretary of the Diocesan Campaign Committee, our department arranged programs for and conducted eight district conferences, all but two being all day meetings.

In addition to our Campaign endeavors we have of course, our work, which is always with us, of consulting with the clergy and parish officers, as to the best ways of furthering education in a parish, the sending of speakers to talk on "The Field" and on the variety of subjects included in Religious Education, and as we come to the close of our activities of 1920 we are thankful to God who has called us to this broader and more comprehensive service along educational lines.

MINNIE V. C. SLOANE
Educational Secretary.

From the Treasurer's accounts the receipts and disbursements for the Season of 1919 were as follows:

RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
For the Year 1919

	RECEIPTS	DISBURSE- MENTS
Domestic Missions	\$3,346.85	\$3,315.35
Foreign Missions	1,359.05	1,357.05
Diocesan Missions	1,707.15	1,697.15
General Expense	1,969.15	1,906.61
Comfort Club	736.64	581.47
M'tside Hospital.....	374.25	374.25
Mrs. Rodman's Memorial	239.00	
American Ch. Inst.	456.00	452.00
Box Fund	782.05	688.53
Emergency Fund	1,974.50	1,800.00
General Missions	958.00	958.00
	<hr/>	<hr/>
	\$13,902.64	\$13,130.41
Total Receipts for Year 1919.....		\$13,902.64
Total Disbursements for Year 1919.....		13,130.41
	<hr/>	<hr/>
Balance.....		\$772.23

Receipts and Disbursements for 1920

	RECEIPTS	DISBURSE- MENTS
Foreign Missions	\$ 881.33	\$ 828.33
Domestic Missions	4,327.19	3,383.92
Diocesan Missions	1,231.50	1,231.50
General Missions	140.00	140.00
Comfort Club	934.32	823.80
General Expense	798.63	463.35
	<hr/>	<hr/>
	\$8,313.97	\$6,870.90

Total Receipts for Year 1920.....		\$8,313.97
Total Disbursements for Year 1920.....		6,870.90
Balance January 1, 1921.....		\$1,442.07

From Reports of Mrs. Baker, our former Treasurer and Mrs. Rodie our present Treasurer.

COMFORT CLUB

Out of 133 Parishes and Churches there were received as follows:

In 1919 Contributions from 49 Churches valued at.....	\$2,220.64
In 1920 Contributions from 46 Churches.....	2,779.67
Total Receipts for 2 Years.....	\$5,000.31

DIOCESAN MISSIONS 1920—21

Mrs. Wm. Read Howe, in charge

	RECEIPTS	BALANCE ON HAND
From Churches	\$787.24	\$ 132.11
At Large	415.00	
Comfort Club	280.96	
Nation 'Wide Campaign	200.00	1,683.20
Total Receipts.....		\$1,815.31

DISBURSEMENTS

To Families (Gifts)	\$595.00
Auto Expenses	592.24
Money Lent	135.00
	\$1,322.24

Balance 1921..... \$493.07

Boxes to Institutes

St. Barnabas	\$326.99
St. Katherine's	132.03
City Missions	211.17
F. Crittenton Home	5.00
House of Good Shepherd	3.00
Church Mission of Help	50.29
Money Gifts.....	\$1,456.11
	\$1,322.24
Total Gifts.....	\$2,778.35

Report of Women's United Thank Offering Custodian
Diocese of Newark
from January 1, 1918—January 1, 1921

January 1, 1918 to December 31, 1918

No. of contributors representing 75 parishes and missions..	2825
Amount received	\$5152.22
Interest	112.64
Total.....	\$5,264.86

January 1, 1919 to October 1, 1919

No. of contributors representing 95 parishes and missions..	3360
Amount received with interest	\$10,337.03
1917 Amount of offering with interest	\$ 4,398.11
1918 Amount of offering with interest	5,264.86
1919 to Oct. 1 offering with interest	10,337.03
Total Triennial Offering	\$20,000.00

Oct. 1, 1919 to Dec. 31, 1919

\$69.32

Jan. 1, 1920 to Oct. 1, 1920	
No. of contributors representing 104 parishes.....	3672
Amount received with Interest	\$6,640.08
	<hr/>
	\$6,709.40
Oct. 1, 1920 received from former Custodian	\$6,709.40
Oct. 1, 1920 to Jan. 1, 1921	829.48
	<hr/>
Total.....	\$7,538.88

No. of parishes with U. T. O. Treasurers.....	116
No. of parishes contributing.....	104
No. of parishes and missions in Diocese (about).....	130

Respectfully submitted,

F. ROSALIE HALPIN,
Custodian.

Summary of Church Periodical Reports for 1919 and 1920

	1919	1920
Current Periodicals Lent Regularly.....	1,054	1,177
Regular Contributors of these Periodicals	600	739
Books Lent	1,776	1,595
Odd Magazines Lent	12,735	13,421
Christmas and Easter Cards Lent	9,000	7,919
Picture Cards and Calendars Lent.....	3,672	6,197

In 1920 the C. P. C. of the Diocese of Newark, as part of the work of the II Province, contributed its quota of books to St. John's School, San Juan, Porto Rico and also made a survey, with satisfactory results, of the important parishes in the Diocese in regard to the placing of the "Spirit of Missions" and other Church papers in their Public Libraries. During the present year, 1921, our efforts are especially turned toward supplying books for the new Library of St. Paul's College, Tokyo. This work is to be completed in 1922.

The number of parishes which have been listed as doing C. P. C. work in the Diocese as fifty-six and of these about forty-six may be considered as *active* members in 1921.

LUCY B. SHAW,
C. P. C. Correspondent for the Diocese of Newark.



